
 

General Business                                     Lower Saucon Township                                              June 18, 2014 

& Developer                                                   Council Agenda                                                             7:00 p.m. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 
A.  Public Hearing and Consideration of Adoption – Ordinance No. 2014-01 – Amending Chapter 90 (Floodplain 

Management)  

B. Public Hearing – Resolution #55-2014 – Acquisition of Property Located at 4166 Lower Saucon Road 

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 
A. Carmen & Diana Vallone – 2546 and 2564 Alpine Drive – Lot Line Change  

 B. Estates @ Stonehurst – 1905 Wilhelm Road – Request Extension of Approval 

 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Quarterly Landfill Consultant Report 

B. Town Hall Police and Administration Directional Signs  

C. Authorize Disposal of Surplus Police Property 

D. Review of Recommendations for Parking Lot Improvements at the Heller Homestead 

E. Disposal of Public Works Spoils 

    

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Approval of June 4, 2014 Minutes 

B. Approval of May 2014 Financial Reports 

     

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   

 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 E. Planner  

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Next Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission Meeting:  June 23, 2014 @ LST 

Next Planning Commission Meeting:  June 26, 2014 

Next Park & Rec Meeting:  July 7, 2014 

Next EAC Meeting:  July 8, 2014 
Next Council Meeting:  July 16, 2014 

Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  July 21, 2014 

Next Saucon Valley Partnership:  September 10, 2014 @ HB 
 

 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



 
General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                             June 18, 2014 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                         7:00 P.M. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 

was called to order on Wednesday, June 18, 2014 at 7:06 P.M., at Lower Saucon Township, 3700 Old 

Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA with Mr. Ron Horiszny, presiding.     

   

 ROLL CALL:  Present:  Ron Horiszny, President; Tom Maxfield, Vice President; Dave Willard and 

Priscilla deLeon, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant Manager; 

Karen Mallo, Township Planner; Linc Treadwell, Township Solicitor; and Brien Kocher, Township 

Engineer.  Absent:  Glenn Kern, Council member. 

  

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 

Mr. Horiszny said Council did meet in Executive Session this evening to discuss legal issues and 

property acquisition.  Attorney Treadwell said the property acquisition is the potential purchase of the 

Woodland Hills Golf Course, the litigation item discussed was relative to the property located at 1415 

Puggy Lane and as a result of the discussions, a motion would be in order to authorize to spend an 

amount of money to be determined by three phone quotes to enforce the court order relative to that 

property. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Willard moved for approval as stated above by the Solicitor.  

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. Horiszny said if you are on the agenda, you have Council and Staff’s undivided attention.  If you do 

choose to speak, we ask that you use one of the microphones.  He asks that you give your fellow public the 

courtesy of the floor.  We ask that you state your name for the record so the transcriptionist knows who is 

speaking in the minutes.  If you are up at the table, please speak into the microphone.  Mr. Cahalan said II. 

B. Resolution #55-2014 has been taken off the agenda and tabled to a future meeting. 

 

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION – ORDINANCE NO. 2014-

01 – AMENDING CHAPTER 90 (FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT) (7:08 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said Ordinance No. 2014-01, which will amend and replace Chapter 90 of the 

Township Code in its entirety, has been prepared and advertised for a public hearing.     

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to open the public hearing.  

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

 Attorney Treadwell said this ordinance revised Chapter 90 of the Code of LST which is relative to 

floodplain management and a new floodplain map that goes along with it which is mandated by the 

State and the Federal Government.   

 

 Mr. Kocher said along with the changes in the floodplain map, FEMA changed some of the 

technology that goes along with development in the floodplain.  They changed some regulations.  

The base regulations are very similar what you have in place now.  Mr. Horiszny said the P/C 

recommended this be approved. 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 18, 2014 
 

Page 2 of 7 

 Mr. Willard questioned a definition and Mr. Kocher said regarding the 100-year flood elevation 

that means the elevation of the street can be in invaded by no more than a foot during the 100-year 

flood.  It doesn’t mean it has to be, but you can’t make it more than one foot.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to close the hearing. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of Ordinance No. 2014-01 amending the floodplain 

management ordinance, Chapter 90 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

B. PUBLIC HEARING - RESOLUTION #55-2014 – ACQUISITION OF WOODLAND HILLS 

– 4166 LOWER SAUCON ROAD PROPERTY 
This item has been tabled. 

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

A. CARMEN & DIANA VALLONE – 2546 AND 2564 ALPINE DRIVE – LOT LINE CHANGE 

(7:13 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said the applicant is proposing a simple lot line to transfer a small amount of land 

among two properties owned by their family. 

 

DRAFT MOTION FOR VALLONE MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN 2546 AND 2464 

ALPINE DRIVE TAX MAP PARCELS Q8-1-16 AND Q8-1-17 PRELIMINARY/FINAL 

SUBDIVISION PLAN APPROVAL  

 

The Lower Saucon Township Staff offers the following approval motion for consideration by the 

Township Council for the “Lot Line Adjustment Plan on Lands Now or Formerly of Carmen C. & 

Diana J. Vallone and Mark C. Vallone,” as prepared by Keystone Consulting Engineers Inc., dated 

May 14, 2014, no revision date, consisting of one (1) sheet. 

 

Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Applicant shall address the review comments contained in the letter dated May 30, 

2014 from Hanover Engineering Associates, Inc. to the satisfaction of the Township 

Council. 

2. The Applicant shall address the review comments contained in the letter dated June 4, 2014 

from Boucher & James, Inc. to the satisfaction of the Township Council. 

3. The Applicant shall provide two (2) Mylars and seven (7) prints of the Record Plans with 

original signatures, notarizations, and seals.   

4. The Applicant shall also provide two (2) CDs of all Plans in a functional editable file 

format (e.g. AutoCAD files) as well as a static image format (e.g. jpeg or pdf). 

5. The Applicant shall pay any outstanding escrow balance due to the Township for review of 

the Plans and the preparation of legal documents. 

6. The Applicant shall satisfy all these conditions within one (1) year of the date of the 

conditional approval unless an extension is granted by the Township Council. 

7. All waivers granted shall be noted on the Plans with the applicable section, requirements, 

date of approval, and any conditions of approval. 

 

Township Council also approves waivers from the following requirements of the following 

Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (SALDO) sections: 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 18, 2014 
 

Page 3 of 7 

1. Sections 145-33.C(1), (2), (3), and 34.B – to not require any more existing features be 

shown on and for the required 500 feet surrounding the site than are already shown on the 

Plan. 

2. Section 145-43.A(5) – to allow this subdivision to create lots of irregular shape.   

 

Township Council further approves a deferral from the requirements of the following Subdivision 

and Land Development Ordinance (SALDO) Section in accordance with terms acceptable to the 

Township:   

 

1. Section 145-45.B(9) – to defer required frontage improvements until a time in the future 

chosen by the Township.     

 

Mr. Keith Lawler from Keystone Engineering was present.  He said in 2007 they subdivided two 

acres off the tract.  This year they want to take a quarter acre from the larger property that contains 

an existing barn and transfer it to the smaller property. 

 

Mr. Lawler said when they initially did this subdivision, and with the change, a pin was put in.  Mr. 

Kocher said they should set the pin then send a letter in saying that you set it and then you are 

done.  Mr. Lawler said the B&J letter had to do with the street trees; they are not taking out any 

trees.  Ms. Mallo said there was a note on the plan saying there was a site visit done in 2007.  It 

doesn’t sound like you are putting in any trees, so they should then request a waiver on that 

requirement.  

 

Mr. Maxfield said there are three waivers in the draft motion.  Now they have another to waive the 

street trees and any changes to them.  Ms. Mallo said based on what Mr. Lawler said there were no 

additional trees along the front removed.  Mr. Maxfield said why don’t we say with conditions and 

that the existing vegetation remains the same.  Ms. Mallo said they can do another site visit or Mr. 

Vallone can request the waiver.  Mr. Maxfield wanted to add in the motion that with the condition 

that existing vegetation remains the same.  Ms. Mallo said if street trees to need to be added, 

Council can make that requirement. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval with changes, adding the wording as stated above, and the 

conditions as stated in the June 18, 2014 motion. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

B. ESTATES AT STONEHURST – 1905 WILHELM ROAD – REQUEST EXTENSION OF 

APPROVAL (7:20 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said the applicant is seeking a one-year extension of time to satisfy their conditions 

of approval. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the request for extension of one year for the Estates at 

Stonehurst. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

A. QUARTERLY LANDFILL CONSULTANT REPORT (7:22 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said the Township Landfill Consultants are present to provide their quarterly update 

on the IESI Bethlehem Landfill. 

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 18, 2014 
 

Page 4 of 7 

Mr. Jim Birdsall from Hanover Engineering went over his report to describe what was going on at 

the landfill in the last quarter and where they see it headed in the next quarter.  He talked about 

waste acceptance, landfill gas management, leachate management, groundwater management, 

traffic management, stormwater management, status of permit applications to DEP, operational 

changes, regulatory oversight and some miscellaneous items. 

 

Mr. Maxfield asked about the leachate flows which were elevated in Cell 4E, and Mr. Birdsall said 

that isn’t a problem.  Mr. Maxfield said methane was showing up in probes, were these probes in 

place for quite some time and just being tested now?  Mr. Schleyer said they have been there for 

quite some time and tested regularly.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said Jim is reporting on the 1
st
 quarter Landfill performance and prior to that, there 

has been other areas that showed exceedances of methane gas and have been corrected.  Mr. 

Schleyer said this happened several years ago and some of the gas traveled out the stone bed, and 

they have done extensive work in that area and solved the problem. 

 

Mrs. deLeon said when we have our consultant meeting, Lauressa McNemar has a map that shows 

probes with exceedances.  Mr. Birdsall said the dots on the map are wells, not probes, and they 

have exceedances on the surface of the landfill.  The probes are underground where it’s like gas is 

traveling along pipes. 

 

Mrs. deLeon asked about the use of the tarp and when DEP approved it.  Mr. Schleyer said 

probably back in 2003.  They use the tarp every day and use a couple of tarps on an area.  They are 

using the same amount. 

 

Mrs. deLeon asked about the overweight trucks and the Township police.  Mr. Cahalan said the PD 

added a stop at the landfill to their routine patrols.  If a truck is weighed at the scale and is 

overweight, they would cite the truck at that time. 

 

Mrs. deLeon asked about the mudslide last week with all the heavy rain.  Mr. Schleyer said it 

wasn’t a mudslide; it was stormwater that came through a channel and had silt and floatable debris 

in it that floated across the road.  Their employees immediately took action and were able to clean 

the road off in about 40 minutes and raked up the trash debris on the Calpine property and cleaned 

it up.  Mrs. deLeon asked where the rocks came from?  Mr. Schleyer said he didn’t see that many 

rocks.  Mr. Maxfield said he was there when that mudslide happened and saw places where rocks 

were washed out down at the end of Applebutter Road, on Ringhoffer Road, and in Freemansburg.   

He came back an hour later and it was all cleaned up.   

 

Mrs. deLeon asked when DEP was called.  Mr. Schleyer said about 4:05 p.m. to the Bethlehem 

office.  Then he called the NE Regional office and someone answered right away. 

 

Mrs. deLeon said several weeks ago, she noticed lots of black birds sitting on the fence by BRE, 

she asked what kind they were?  Mr. Schleyer said they could either be crows or vultures.   

 

Mr. Willard said the acceptance rate was 25% less than the previous quarter through December, so 

his speculation is we create more junk during the holiday.  Mr. Schleyer said they look out for the 

life of the landfill so they need to adjust things accordingly.  It’s their decision to decrease or 

increase waste.  

  

Mrs. deLeon when cell 4D was filled in, where was the last disposal area?  Mr. Schleyer said that is 

very much an active area yet.  When they build up cell 4C they will tie into cell 4D.  Not all of 4D 

is filled in.   

 

 

E. DISPOSAL OF PUBLIC WORKS SPOILS (7:54 PM) 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 18, 2014 
 

Page 5 of 7 

Mr. Cahalan said Mr. Birdsall mentioned in his report about the daily cover materials IESI is using 

and this is related to the Township spoils pile in the PW yard.  It grew larger this year and we have 

several projects planned that will produce more dirt.  We looked at ways to dispose of the dirt and 

met with the landfill to see if they can use it for their daily cover.  They will be working on the tot 

lot at Polk Valley Park and the Easton Road ballfield which will produce more dirt.  They met with 

Al Schleyer and Chris Taylor and worked out an arrangement which they think will work.  They 

need to get approval from DEP to live load the soil from the project sites directly to the landfill.  

Chris Taylor is working on that.  He will certify that the material is clean fill.  Chris will look for a 

laboratory where we can get the PW dirt pile analyzed.  We also have stones and are going to try to 

arrange to have them live loaded to the landfill, which will probably be next year.   

 

B. TOWN HALL POLICE AND ADMINISTRATION DIRECTIONAL SIGNS (7:59 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said the Manager and Police Chief will review and present recommendations for new 

directional signage that is needed for the Administration and Police wings of Town Hall. 
 

Mr. Cahalan said the only identifying signs are little placards which are up on the door and not 

visible to the people in the parking lots.  We have people who walk into one section and find out 

that’s not where they need to go.   We are proposing to put signage up in the areas depicted in the 

photographs.  They would be anchored in the ground.  There is a cost estimate of $1,000.00 from 

Horizon Signs in Quakertown.  Council chose the brown background with white lettering.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to go forward with the Police and Administrative signs with the brown 

background and white lettering from Horizon Signs at a cost of $1,000.00. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

C. AUTHORIZE DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS POLICE PROPERTY (8:04 PM) 

Mr. Cahalan said staff is requesting Council approval to dispose of, via bid or electronic sale, 

Police Department surplus property.  Mr. Cahalan will make sure all information is taken off the 

computer before they put them out for advertisement. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval to dispose of the surplus police property subject to certifying 

that all the sensitive information has been removed from the laptops prior to the sale. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

D. REVIEW OF RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS AT THE 

HELLER HOMESTEAD 

Mr. Horiszny said the Township Planner and Manager will review their recommendations for 

improvements to the parking lot area at the Heller Homestead and repair of the stone steps and 

porch.    

 

Ms. Mallo went over the sketch plans and the type of plants going in.  The pathway was eliminated 

as it’s too steep to meet ADA requirements.  Mrs. deLeon asked if we were violating the law?  Ms. 

Mallo said the ADA requirements are necessary if we are making new improvements in an area.  

Mrs. deLeon said we have people come to events with wheelchairs.  Mr. Cahalan said we are not 

required to have ADA access to the building itself.  
 

Mr. Cahalan said if you are comfortable with this plan, he will come back with an estimated cost 

for the planting and any other landscaping.    

 

 

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 18, 2014 
 

Page 6 of 7 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of the Heller Homestead plans, revised June 13, 2014. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  Mr. Jurczak asked if there was 

a visual they could see.  Mrs. deLeon said it’s pretty much the same thing as before except the 

pathway was eliminated.  Mr. Jurczak asked if anything was being done to the electrical?  Mr. 

Cahalan said no.  Mr. Jurczak said could there be a post with a GFI outlet which would use the 

existing circuit that is there when there are events?  Mr. Cahalan said it is a parking area and 

would have to be protected from someone driving into it and it’s in the floodplain.  Mr. Jurczak 

said that would be an improvement and a consideration he’d ask for.  Mr. Maxfield said this 

could be put on a future agenda.  Mr. Cahalan said they can bring the information back at the 

next meeting. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

 Mr. Cahalan went over the steps at the Heller Homestead.  He had photographs of the two sets 

of the steps, the lower one from the parking lot and the steps going into the main house.  They 

are looking to repair them and he is still getting quotes.  It looks like everything has to be torn 

out and replaced and built back up to the original design on both steps.  Tentatively, he got a 

cost of $8,000.00 to $9,000.00.   

 

 Mr. Cahalan said PW put up the railing about 10 years ago.  He asked if they wanted 

something appropriate to go up the steps and also encompass the top portion.  This would have 

to be run by PHMC.  Mrs. deLeon would like to see handrails.  Mr. Cahalan said it would be 

period appropriate.  For the tread of the stairs, they would be looking at a solid piece rather 

than individual stones.  He asked Mr. Jurczak to ask the Conservancy for some input.  He will 

ask PHMC about the lime mortar before we get into pricing. 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF JUNE 4, 2014 MINUTES (8:32 PM)   
Mr. Horiszny said draft minutes of the June 4, 2014 Council meeting have been prepared and are 

ready for Council’s review and approval.  He had a correction on page 6, line 5, the vote was 3-0. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the June 4, 2014 Council minutes, with correction. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (No – Mrs. deLeon; Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

B. APPROVAL OF MAY 2014 FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Mr. Horiszny said the May 2014 financial reports have been prepared and are ready for Council’s 

review and approval.  He questioned check no. 69408 called make-up training, what is that?  Mr. 

Cahalan said it’s part of the Police Dept. annual MPOETC training to maintain their certifications.  

They offer it on line for free and for whatever reason the officer couldn’t do that so he had to take 

the course in the classroom, which they still charge for.  Mr. Horiszny said on page 13, the 

$1,783.00 charge for Heritage Conservancy for the Martin property.  Was that the original 

assessment?  Mr. Cahalan said work was done by Laura Baird and Jeff Marshall.   Mr. Willard said 

page 15, there’s an item from the Capital Fund, Canns-Billco Distributor, $9,999.00?  Mr. Cahalan 

said it’s for the purchase of a maintenance vehicle for parks that was approved in the 2014 budget 

for PW and they are using it out at Polk Valley Park. 

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of the May 2014 Financial reports. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 
 

 

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 18, 2014 
 

Page 7 of 7 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS (8:36 PM) 

 Mr. Gene Boyer, Saucon Avenue questioned the Executive Session and didn’t understand what 

happened.  Attorney Treadwell said the motion was to spend an amount to be determined by three 

phone quotes to enforce the court order relative to that property located at 1415 Puggy Lane.  Mr. 

Boyer said why was II.B. taken off the agenda again?  Attorney Treadwell said it’s not ready to be 

acted on. The agreement of sale is not ready yet.  Mr. Boyer said is there a reason that a 

representative of LST stood in front of Northampton County and said you guys voted on it?  Mr. 

Cahalan said yes, because she misspoke.  Mr. Boyer said they gave you a $300,000.00 grant based 

on her comments.  Mr. Cahalan said that wasn’t the case; it was based on the open space 

application we submitted that was reviewed and approved by their Open Space Advisory 

Committee and the Council Open Space Committee.  Mr. Boyer said why was the property up for 

sale for $895,000.00 a year ago and now we’re paying $1.7 million now?  Attorney Treadwell said 

the building by itself was up for sale separately for that price, not the property.   
 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS (8:39 PM) 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER – No report 

 

B. COUNCIL 

Mr. Willard 

 He said the Economic Development Task Force has two meetings this month, June 19
th
 and 

June 25
th
.  They are moving toward a final plan recommendation for Council in October.  

Mrs. deLeon  
 Monday night is the Ginny Atwell exhibit from 7:00 pm to 9:00 pm.   

Mr. Kern – Absent 

Mr. Maxfield  
 He said be on caution for sinkholes as we have had some with this bad rain.   

 He thanked Ron for the idea of the Volunteer Picnic, it was a great time and the least we 

can do to thank our volunteers and boards.  

Mr. Horiszny 

 He said the LSA met last night.  They are doing the Meadows Road tie-in and trying to 

loop the systems to make them more efficient. 

 He got a citizen concern about the benches at the dog park being used so extensively that 

the grass underneath them is worn out.  Mr. Cahalan will go and check it out.  Mr. Cahalan 

said it’s been discussed at the Parks and Recreation meeting to enlarge the dog park and 

they are putting together a survey for dog park users and will come back with 

recommendations.   

C. SOLICITOR – No report 

D. PLANNER – No report 

E. ENGINEER – No report 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:45 pm. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Willard 

Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent - Mr. Kern) 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Jack Cahalan       Ron Horiszny     

Township Manager      Council President 


